

# City and County of San Francisco Meeting Minutes Rules Committee

City Hall 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place San Francisco, CA 94102-4689

Members: Hillary Ronen, Catherine Stefani, Gordon Mar

Clerk: Victor Young (415) 554-7723

Monday, June 1, 2020

10:00 AM

### **WATCH SF Cable Channel 26**

Present: 3 - Hillary Ronen, Catherine Stefani, and Gordon Mar

The Rules Committee met in regular session through videoconferencing on Monday, June 1, 2020, with Chair Hillary Ronen presiding. Chair Ronen called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m.

### **ROLL CALL AND ANNOUNCEMENTS**

On the call of the roll, Chair Ronen, Vice Chair Stefani, and Member Mar were noted present. A quorum was present.

### **AGENDA CHANGES**

There were no agenda changes.

### **REGULAR AGENDA**

Chair Ronen requested that File Nos. 200392 and 200393 be called and heard together.

### **200392** [Mayoral Appointment, Police Commission - Geoffrey Gordon-Creed]

Motion rejecting/approving the Mayor's nomination for the appointment of Geoffrey Gordon-Creed to the Police Commission, for a four-year term ending April 30, 2024. (Clerk of the Board) (Charter, Section 4.109, provides that this nomination is subject to approval by the Board of Supervisors and shall be the subject of a public hearing and vote within 60 days from the date the nomination is transmitted to the Clerk of the Board. If the Board fails to act on the nomination within 60 days from the date the nomination is transmitted to the Clerk, then the nominee shall be deemed approved. Transmittal date: April 16, 2020)

04/17/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Rules Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Supervisors Matt Haney and Dean Preston (Board of Supervisors); Angela Calvillo, Clerk of the Board (Board of Supervisors); Anne Pearson (Office of the City Attorney); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion. Nancy Tung; Geoffrey Gordon-Creed; spoke on their qualifications and answered questions raised throughout the discussion. Spenser Guffrey; Alex Yee Xavier; Ellen Ginsberg; Johnathan Louie; Peter Quan; Michael Winn; Speaker; Frank; Sonya Trouse; Hansinata; Bear Prawn; Speaker; Speaker; Larry Yee; Margaret Pedegrew; Mina Ya; Arlen Tran (Stop Crime SF); Ellen Lee Jow: Amy Lee: Corry Smith: Speaker: Juliana Troy: Tina Wong: Jenette: Alex Wong: Gotem Sutter; Speaker; Bruce Agen; spoke in support of the appointment of Nancy Tung. Kamika Ma; Margera Grissel; spoke in support of the appointment of Geoffrey Gordon-Creed. Kevin Hall; Ms. Chang; spoke in support of the appointment of Nancy Tung and Geoffrey Gordon-Creed. Ms. Brown; Speaker; Alex Joe King; Mimi Clausner; Eric Sandoval; Ms. Peridy; Emily Morris; Kerry Nixon; Ben Heromi; Majik Altman; Carrie Run; Izzy Oldman; Susan Shallot; Speaker; Jason Crudo; Emily Lee (SF Rising); Dillon; Speaker; Ashley; Tyler Respoker; Laura Quakerton; Ryan Sefenger; Hanna Broth; Bill; Alexander Post; Nicolas Floyd; Nicole; Eminesky; Patrick Kirby; Speaker; Ms. Harrold; Sophia Melinin; Aldman; Speaker; Sara Lee; Steven Altermerano; Mitch Calsermarson; Gabriel Mafis; Katherine Walter; Joe; S. Maganelli; Ms. Hunter; Mr. Pandale; Iana Green; Susan Marsha; Kelsie; Chance Kenny; Emily Jackleton; Donna Nevinsky: Speaker: Roma Agrid: Speaker: Wendy Wong: Christine Wen: Marvin Mitch: Speaker: Ms. Polly: Azzirome: Daniel Shy: Spike Garza: Ameda: Ronen Catel: Landin Davis: Francisco Da Costa; Angela Chan; Gloria Berry; Mr. Rudolf; Speaker; John Titus; Monica Zeng; Nimo; Pope Williams; Jenny; Fam; John Jacobo; John Camen; Janice; Peras Holey; Matt Dillon; Mark Powell; Peter Caloway: Elizabeth Camacho; Ms. Wilson; Santi Sing; Jeffrey Stout; Tess Towborn; Curtis Woo; spoke in opposition of the appointment of Nancy Tung and/or Geoffrey Gordon-Creed. Julie Tron; Angela R. Jenkins; Jennifer Friedenbach; Linda Chapman; spoke neither in support nor against the appointment Nancy Tung; Geoffrey Gordon-Creed.

Chair Ronen moved that this Motion be AMENDED, AN AMENDMENT OF THE WHOLE BEARING NEW TITLE, by striking the word 'approving' throughout the legislation and adding other clarifying and conforming changes. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 2 - Ronen, Mar Noes: 1 - Stefani Motion rejecting the Mayor's nomination for the appointment of Geoffrey Gordon-Creed to the Police Commission, for a four-year term ending April 30, 2024. (Clerk of the Board) (Charter, Section 4.109, provides that this nomination is subject to approval by the Board of Supervisors and shall be the subject of a public hearing and vote within 60 days from the date the nomination is transmitted to the Clerk of the Board. If the Board fails to act on the nomination within 60 days from the date the nomination is transmitted to the Clerk, then the nominee shall be deemed approved. Transmittal date: April 16, 2020)

(Supervisor Stefani dissented in Committee.)

### Chair Ronen moved that this Motion be RECOMMENDED AS AMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 2 - Ronen, Mar Noes: 1 - Stefani

### **200393** [Mayoral Appointment, Police Commission - Nancy Tung]

Motion approving/rejecting the Mayor's nomination for the appointment of Nancy Tung to the Police Commission, for a four-year term ending April 30, 2024. (Clerk of the Board) (Charter, Section 4.109, provides that this nomination is subject to approval by the Board of Supervisors and shall be the subject of a public hearing and vote within 60 days from the date the nomination is transmitted to the Clerk of the Board. If the Board fails to act on the nomination within 60 days from the date the nomination is transmitted to the Clerk, then the nominee shall be deemed approved. Transmittal date: April 16, 2020)

04/17/20; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Rules Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Supervisors Matt Haney and Dean Preston (Board of Supervisors): Angela Calvillo. Clerk of the Board (Board of Supervisors): Anne Pearson (Office of the City Attorney); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion. Nancy Tung; Geoffrey Gordon-Creed; spoke on their qualifications and answered questions raised throughout the discussion. Spenser Guffrey; Alex Yee Xavier; Ellen Ginsberg; Johnathan Louie; Peter Quan; Michael Winn; Speaker; Frank; Sonya Trouse; Hansinata; Bear Prawn; Speaker; Speaker; Larry Yee; Margaret Pedegrew; Mina Ya; Arlen Tran (Stop Crime SF); Ellen Lee Jow; Amy Lee; Corry Smith; Speaker; Juliana Troy; Tina Wong; Jenette; Alex Wong; Gotem Sutter: Speaker: Bruce Agen: spoke in support of the appointment of Nancy Tung. Kamika Ma; Margera Grissel; spoke in support of the appointment of Geoffrey Gordon-Creed. Kevin Hall: Ms. Chang: spoke in support of the appointment of Nancy Tung and Geoffrey Gordon-Creed. Ms. Brown; Speaker; Alex Joe King; Mimi Clausner; Eric Sandoval; Ms. Peridy; Emily Morris; Kerry Nixon; Ben Heromi; Majik Altman; Carrie Run; Izzy Oldman; Susan Shallot; Speaker; Jason Crudo; Emily Lee (SF Rising); Dillon; Speaker; Ashley; Tyler Respoker; Laura Quakerton; Ryan Sefenger; Hanna Broth; Bill; Alexander Post; Nicolas Floyd; Nicole; Eminesky; Patrick Kirby; Speaker; Ms. Harrold; Sophia Melinin; Aldman; Speaker; Sara Lee; Steven Altermerano; Mitch Calsermarson; Gabriel Mafis; Katherine Walter; Joe; S. Maganelli; Ms. Hunter; Mr. Pandale; Iana Green; Susan Marsha; Kelsie; Chance Kenny; Emily Jackleton; Donna Nevinsky; Speaker; Roma Agrid; Speaker; Wendy Wong; Christine Wen; Marvin Mitch; Speaker; Ms. Polly; Azzirome; Daniel Shy; Spike Garza; Ameda; Ronen Catel; Landin Davis; Francisco Da Costa; Angela Chan; Gloria Berry; Mr. Rudolf; Speaker; John Titus; Monica Zeng; Nimo; Pope Williams; Jenny, Fam; John Jacobo; John Camen; Janice; Peras Holey; Matt Dillon; Mark Powell; Peter Caloway; Elizabeth Camacho; Ms. Wilson; Santi Sing; Jeffrey Stout; Tess Towborn; Curtis Woo; spoke in opposition of the appointment of Nancy Tung and/or Geoffrey Gordon-Creed. Julie Tron; Angela R. Jenkins; Jennifer Friedenbach; Linda Chapman; spoke neither in support nor against the appointment Nancy Tung; Geoffrey Gordon-Creed.

Chair Ronen moved that this Motion be AMENDED, AN AMENDMENT OF THE WHOLE BEARING NEW TITLE, by striking the word 'approving' throughout the legislation and adding other clarifying and conforming changes. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 2 - Ronen, Mar Noes: 1 - Stefani Motion rejecting the Mayor's nomination for the appointment of Nancy Tung to the Police Commission, for a four-year term ending April 30, 2024. (Clerk of the Board) (Charter, Section 4.109, provides that this nomination is subject to approval by the Board of Supervisors and shall be the subject of a public hearing and vote within 60 days from the date the nomination is transmitted to the Clerk of the Board. If the Board fails to act on the nomination within 60 days from the date the nomination is transmitted to the Clerk, then the nominee shall be deemed approved. Transmittal date: April 16, 2020)

(Supervisor Stefani dissented in Committee.)

### Chair Ronen moved that this Motion be RECOMMENDED AS AMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 2 - Ronen, Mar Noes: 1 - Stefani

## 200420 [Business and Tax Regulations, Administrative Codes - Temporary Suspension of Vacancy Tax]

Sponsor: Peskin

Ordinance amending the Business and Tax Regulations Code and Administrative Code to temporarily suspend the imposition of the Vacancy Tax, through December 31, 2021.

04/28/20; ASSIGNED UNDER 30 DAY RULE to Rules Committee, expires on 5/28/2020.

05/07/20; REFERRED TO DEPARTMENT. Referred to the Controller and the Treasurer/Tax Collector for informatonal purposes.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Lee Hepner, Legislative Aide (Office of Supervisor Aaron Peskin); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion. Nicole Netty; Speaker; spoke in support of the matter. Sunny Straus; Jet Transner; Hugh Gerstein; spoke in opposition of the matter.

#### **RECOMMENDED** by the following vote:

Ayes: 3 - Ronen, Stefani, Mar

#### **ADJOURNMENT**

There being no further business, the Rules Committee adjourned at the hour of 4:58 p.m.

N.B. The Minutes of this meeting set forth all actions taken by the Rules Committee on the matters stated, but not necessarily in the chronological sequence in which the matters were taken up.